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INDEPENDENT AUDMTOR'S REPORT

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Chinabank Insurance Brokers, Inc.

8'F, VGP Center, 6772 Avala Avenue
Barangzay San Lorenso, Makati City

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Chpinion

We have audited the financial statements of Chinabank Insurance Brokers, Inc. (the Company, a whaolly
owned subsidiary of China Banking Corporation, which comprise the balance sheets as al

December 31, 2022 and 202 1, and the statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in
equity and staterments of cach flows for the years then ended. and notes 1o the financial statements,
mcluding 2 summary of significant accounting policies,

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all matenal respects, the financial
position of the Company as al December 31, 2022 and 2021, and its financial performance and ifs cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Basis for (hpinion

We conducted our andits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further desenbed in the Awditor s Responsibilities for the Audit
af the Financial Statéments section of our ceport. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our sudit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical respansibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the andst evidence we bave obtained is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a
basis for our opimion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governanee for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with PFRSs, and for such intemal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
CImar.

In preparing the financial stalements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability 1o
conlinue as a poing concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the ¢
poing concemn bagis of accounting unless management either ntends 1o llqull:lﬂ.lﬂ IIH Cﬂmpﬂ.nv o 10 I:I:El&l!
operations, or has no realistic altermative but o do so. .,I—-.":. A E I _"
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Auditor's Responsibilities Tor the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectivies are to obton reasonable assurnmee about whether the inancial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion.  Reasonable assurance 15 a high level of assurance, bul s not a puarantes that an
audit conducted in gecordance with PSAs will always detecta material mizstatement when it exisis
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered matenial if, individuzily or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 10 influence the economie decisions of wsers taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with P3As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skeplicism throughout the audit, We also

#  |ldentify and azsess the nsks of matenal misstatement of the financial statements, whether due o fraud
or error, design and perform awdit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opmion.  The risk of not detecting a matenal
misstaterment resulting from fraud is higher thin for one resulting from errorn, as fraod may involve
collusion, forgery, infentional omiissions, misrepreseniations, or the override of imtemal control,

s Obtain an understandmg of internal contral relevant to the andit i order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectivencss of the Company”s intermal control.

e Evaloate the appropriatensss of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by managemens.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concemn basis of accounting and,
hased on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related (o events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going congem.
If we conclude that a material unceriainty exists, we are required 1o draw attention in-our awditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 1o
modify our opinton. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s reporl. However, [ulure events or condilions may cause the Company 1o cease to conbimue
a5 3 Eoing concerm.

» [Evaluale the overall presentation, stracture and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statemsenis represent the underlying transactions and events ina
manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communricate with those charged with governance regording. among other maners, the plannisd scope
amd timing of the audit and significant audit fimdings, inchading any significant deficiencies in mlemal
contr that we identify during our audit ]
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Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations 15-2010

Owr audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements (aken
as a whole, The supplementary information required under Revenue Regulations 15-2010 in Note 21 1o
the financial statements is presented for purpeses of filmg with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and is not
a reguited part of the basic financial statements, Such information i5 the responsibility of the
mignagement of Chinabank Ingurance Brokers, Ing, The information has been subjected 1o the auditing
procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements. In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated, m oll matenial respects, in relation to the basic linancial statements taken a3 a whole.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & OO,

Redgibald G, Radam
Pariner
CPA Ceriificate N, | 1EE60
Tax Identification Mo, 249-000-259
BOAPRC Reg. No. 0001, August 25, 2021, valid until April 15, 2024
SEC Partner Accreditation No, 1 18866-5EC (Group A)
Valid to cover audit of 2021 to 2035 financial statements of SEC covered institutions
SEC Firm Accreditation No, 00 -5EC { Group A)
Valid to cover audit of 2021 1o 2025 financial statements of SEC coverad instimutions
BIE Accreditation Mo, O8-001998-141-2021, Apnl 27, 2021, valid uniil April 26, 2024
PTE Moo 95646082, January 3. 2023 Makat Cily

Apnl 14, 2023
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CHINABANK INSURANCE BROKERS, INC.
{A Wholly (hwned Subsidiary of China Banking Corporation)

BALANCE SHEETS

December 31
22 2021
ASSETS
Current Asseis
Cash ond cash equivalents [Notes 5 and 19} PIAR 44 602 Pil4.618 838
Receivables (Notesz 6 and 19) LI9T 023 b 263,220
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Motes 7 and 1%) 153.968.214 151,200 385
Orther cument assets {Note ) 47,642,576 40,012,802
535,552,415 512,106,235
Moncurrent Assets
Property and equipment (Note 2 AT o4 35452873
Software costs (Mate 1) 4,992 78T A _R26,900
Pension asset (Mote 15) - 2.081,094
Deferred tax assel (Mote L6} 11,719,499 10,497 352
Oiher noncurrent asscts (Note 11) 6,433,270 1872371
50,423,310 56,630,590
P586,275, 728 P36E.716,843

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Linbilities

Acerued expenses £11,158,097 B2, 203 460
Payable to insurance principals (Mote 12) 4.077471 27.920.505
Lease linbility (Note 13) 7.694.772 6,979,368
Orher liabilities {Mote 14) 141,516,538 155,778,094
164,446,878 192 281,427
Noncurrent Linbilities
Lease liability, net of current portion (Mode 13) 12,163,986 19,780,354
Pension liability (Mot 15) 2,246,820 =
14,4186 19,780,354
178,857,684 212,661 781
Equity
Capital stock —#100 par value
Authorized — 5,000,000 shares
Issued and outstanding - 1,421,300 chares 142, 130,000 142,130,000
Retained earnings {MNote 17)
Appropriated B0 O, D0 20000000
Unappropnated 176,678,270 123,350,948
Pemeasurement gaing on retirement plan (Mote 15) 7087471 9071818
Chher equity - stock grant (Note 17) 621,300 622,300
407 418.041 356,075,064
P5B6,275,725 P368,736,845

Ser accompanrirg Nates ja [ Y r—
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CHINABANK INSURANCE BROKERS. INC.
(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Ching Banking Corporation)

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31

2022 2021
REVENUE
COmimission 276,159,998 P20 528 365
OPERATING EXPENSES
Compensation and fringe benefits {Notes 15 and 19) 70,209,111 62,248,157
Marketing 34,228,739 20,791 289
Depreciation and smortization (Motes 9 and 109 12,715,798 12,595,110
Manazgement and professional fees (Mote 19) 5,515,593 4971, 767
Enterisinment, amusement, and recrealion 5,456,084 3,564,990
Reversal of impairment losses (Note 1 1) (2,200,778) (1210574}
Taxes and licenses 2,334,754 1. h6d,.006
Occupancy 1.487.118 1.215463
Messengerial and janitorial services 1,535,569 1,325,844
Stationery and office supplies 345,525 1,262,502
Postage, telephone, and telegraph TE4,391 655 355
Transporiatton and travel 266,676 232,342
Miscellaneous 14,203,233 403 035
151,892,113 | 22,277,776
NET OPERATING INCOME 124,267,885 121,250,589
OTHER INCOME
Interest (Motes 5 and 19) 392,144 554 659
le_.g_:ljanmu.s {Motes 7 and ) 13665104 [.045 139
14,057,338 2,499,793
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 138,325,223 | 23,750,387
FROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Mote 16) 34,997,901 31,735,878
KET INCOME 103,327,322 Uz 4504
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Irems that does wot recycle to profit or loss in subsequent pertods:
Remeasurement gains (losses) on retirement plan, net of tax
[Moic 15) (1,984,345} 1669219
i1.984,345) 1669219
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME #1010 342977 P93 6R1,728
See mecnmpanving Nodes o Financial Sfalemenis,
[ 3
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CHINABANK INSURANCE BROKERS, INC.
(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of China Banking Corporation)

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Hemeasuremenl
Creher Equity Gains on
Retwined Earnings (Mie 17} Steck Grant  Retbrement Flan
Capital Stock Approprinied  Unappropriated [Bate §7) [ Modi 13) Taotal
Balance ot Jangory 1, 2022 P42, 1300 FPE LD, 0040 F123.350.948 PHI2 300 PR.971,El6 FA56 0750
Cash dividends declored and paid - = {5, O = - (20, 004,004)
Tatl comprehensive imooing - = 103,327,332 — = {1,904, 345) 101342977
Balanée af Decomber 31, 2023 ELA2 1300 FEO_(IMI, D EIT6.6THITO BALE A0 BT AHT AT AT ATRD41
Balamee at January 1, 2021 P 1A, My i) B 20 (K, D) PRI 36,430 PA5 G, 550 PE 2,597 B2A2 415626
Appropriation of sefamed camangs - SO0 [ S48 CKHE ) = = =
Stack grant {Mobe 17) | 34,2000 - [ 34,2400
]ﬂF"l comprehengve incame - - PR e - e 9% ARETIR
Balnnee at Decembsar 31, 2021 - RILY | M0 BEO O R0 PI23 350948 BT 30HI Po o7l 1 P356 075064

See mocomprawing Mides o Firaeciol .5';I';Hl'|"-'!ut_1H-'r-
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CHINABANK INSURANCE BROKERS, INC.
iA Whaolly Owned Subsidiary of China Banking Corporation)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Vears Ended Drecember 31

222 2021
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Imcom: before incomse tax P138, 325223 B123,750,387
Adjustrents for:
Depreciation and amortization (MNotes 9 and B 12,715,798 [ L59% 010
Trading gain on Anancial assets al Fair waloe through profil or loss
{Moe T) (2,758, R215) (1,168 405

Reversal of impairment losses (MNote 117 (2,200,778 (1,210.574)

Betirement expense {Mote 15) 2583, T 2786076

Foreign exchange gnins (1.654,85T) (776,734)

[nterest expense {Mote 13] 1.004 (63 | 405 751

Interest income {Naote 5) (392,144) (534,659}

Cramn on sale of property and equipment (Note %) {999) -

Remeasurement of stock grant (Note 17) - {34,290}
Crperating income before working capital changes 147,721,190 136,796,662

Decrease (Increased in the amounts of
Receivables S068,203 {3.420)
Chlier asseis (1,549 65%) (T15381)
Inerease (decrease) in the amounis of
Payable to insurance princijals (23.R43,034) (10029 847
Accrued expenses 6,954,637 (G235, 488)
Chlser labilities (12,263,145) [35,440,506)
Met cash generated from operations 121,788,192 OO 020
Imterest received 392,144 581,323
Ineomie taxes paid (Note 16) (431.698,835) (37 290,950}
Contributions 1o plan asset (Mot £5) - 2, 786,076)
Mot cash provided by opersting a-:jj_':liiieg TEARL S0 50486317
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions of)

Property snd equipment (Mote %) (3. 408,950) (5464 8130

Softean: costs {Note 10) (207,617) (455,357}
Proceeds from sale of:

Property and equipment (Mote 9% 1AM -
Met cash used in investing activities (3,715,567} (5920, 187)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Lease povments (Mote 13) (7,995,027} (Le143101)
Dividends declared and pamd o stockhalders { S0, M 0y -
Met cash used 1o financing activities (57,995 027) (T.614311)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 16,770,907 I6951,819
EFFECTS OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE 1,654,857 76,754
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 314,618,838 2ThRO0.ZRS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR (Mote 5)

I i602 --i*im.ﬁisiﬁ

See avcompanring Nodes to Finanotal Satemaents,
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CHINABANK INSURANCE BROKERS, INC.
(A Wholly Owned Subsidiary of China Banking Corporation)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Corporate Information

Chinabank Insuronce Brokers. Inc. (the Company), a wholly owned subsidiary of China Bankimg
Corporation (the Parent Company), was registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange
Commission (SECY on November 3, 1998 primarily to engage in insurance brokerage business, The
Company stared its commercial operations on February 24, 1994

The Company’s principal place of business is located at 8F, VGP Center, 6772 Ayala Avenue,
Barangay San Lorenzo, Makatt City.

[

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The accompanyving financial starements have been prepared ona historical cost bagis except for
fmancial assets at fair value through profit or loss {FVTPL) that have been measured ar fair value,
The financial statements are presented in Philippine peso (B), which is also the Company’s functional.
All amounts are rounded 1o the nearest peso, except when otherwise indicated.

The accompanying linanciol statements of the Company have been prepared in secordance with
Philippineg Financial Repomting Standards {PFRSs) as iszued by the Financial Reporting Standards
Council (FRSC).

Changes in Accounting Policics a so losures
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous linancial year except for the

following amendments to PFRS which became effective beginning January 1, 2022, Unless
otherwise indicated, these changes in the accounting policies did not have any significant impact on
the financial positton or performance of the Compomy:

o Amendments 1o PFRS 3, Reference fo the Conceptual Framework
Amendments o PAS 16, Plant aed Equipment: Proceeds before fintended Use

»  Amendments to PAS 37, Ouerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

s Amendments (0 PFRS 1, Fies-fime Adoption of Fhilippines Froancial Reporting Siondards,
Subsidiary as g first-rime adopter

s Amendments to PFRS 9, Financiol Instrements, Fees (o the 10 per cont” test for derecopnition of
Haancial Nabilides

o Amendments to PAS 41, Agricwdture, Taxation in foir value megsarements

Presentation of Financial Statements

Financial assets and financial Habilines are offzet and the net amdount reposted in the balance sheaet
only when there 12 a legally enforceable rght 1o offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention 1o settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultanecusly.

The Company assesses that it has currently enforceable right ﬂfﬁ.‘lh’ﬂﬂi_iﬂhe right is not contingent on
a future event, and is legally enforceable in the normal course of business, event of default, and event
of insolvency or bankmuptey of the Company and all the munteqﬁ.rﬁm.'
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Incoime and expenses are not offset in the statement of income unless required or permittad by any
accounting standard or interpretation, and as specifically disciosed in the accounting policies of the
Company.

Current versus Noncurrent Classification
The Company presents assets and linbalities in the balance sheet based on current or noncurrent
classification. An assel 1 presented as o current asgel when:

®  [1is expected w be realized or intended e be sold or consumed within the nonmal operating
cycle;
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
It is expected 10 be realized within twelve months afier the reporting period; or
It 15 cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used o settle a habiliny for
ot least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other aszets are classified a5 noncurrent assets.
A liabiliny is presented as a current lability when:

It iz expected 1o be setiled within the normal operating cycle;

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

It is due 10 be settled within twelve months after the reporting period: or

Ihere 15 no unconditional nght to defer the settlement of the hability for at least twelve months
after the repoming period,

ALl oher habilities are classihed a5 noncurrent.
The Company classifies deferred tax assets and labilihes as nuncurrent,

Fair Walue Measurement

For measurement and disclosure purposes, the Company determines the fuir value of an asset or
Hiability at initial measurement date or at each balance sheel date, Fair value is the price that would
be received o sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the ranssction (0 sell the assel or transfer the liability akes place either:

» |nthe principal market for the asset or liabality, or
* [ ike absence of a pnacipal market, o the most advantageous market for the asset or lability,

The principal or the most advantageous market roust be accessible 1o the Company,

The faar value of an asset or a liability i3 measured using the assumptions that market participanis
would use when pricing the asset or liability, sssuming that market participants act in their economic
best nterest. . '|
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into necnunt B marln:t pﬂmnpam 5 Ehl|lt}
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and brstﬂﬂ-ur b sedling it to another
market pariicipant that would use the assel in its highest and best use. e J

ezl
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The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant cbhservable inpuis
snd mimimezing the use of unobservable inpurs,

Financial Instruments

Date of recognilian

Financial mstruments within the scope of PFRS 9 are recognized in the balance sheet when the
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the imstrument. Purchases or sales of
financial asscis that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace are recognized on the setilement date, the date that an assct is delivered
o o by the Company,

Classification and fniial recognifion of Sranclal Insivisaeniz

The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their contractual terms
and the business model for managing the mstruments.  Financial mstruments are anitially messured at
fair value. Except for financial instruments at FYTPL, transaction costs are added Lo, or subtracted
from, the amount at initial recognition.

Controetual casl flows fess

In crder for a Minancial asset to be classified and measured at amorized cost or fair value through
ather comprehensive income (FYOCI), it needs to give rise to cash flows that are “solely payments of
principal and mterest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as
the SPFPI test and 15 performed at an instrument level.

‘Principal” for the purpose of this 1est is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial
recogniiion and may change over the life of the Anancial assel (Bor example, if there are repayments
of principal or amortization. of the premivm/discoumnt |,

The most significant elements of interest within a lending arrangement are typically the consideration
for the time value of money and credit risk. To make the SPPI assgssment, the Company appi:u:ﬁ
judgement and considers relevant factors such as the currency in which the financial assets 15
dencrmnated, and the penod for which the imterest mie 15 set,

Business mode! assessment

The Company s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial
assels m order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both,

.?Jn'bfé‘f]‘il-l’:".l'l'l' Easremens
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified i four categories:

Francial assets al amoriized cost
«  Financial assets at FVOCT with recycling of cumulative gains and losses {debl instraments)
» Financial assets designated at FVOC] with no recyeling of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognminion {equity instruments ) - \
+ Financial asseds ai FVTPL '

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company s ﬁnum:ml qss:nlﬁ wmms&ﬂ% Ja’cggeis at
amortized cost and financial assets at FVTPL. _



Fimancial assets af anortized cost
Financial assets are measured a1 amortized cost ifboth af the following conditions are met:

s  The asset is held within the Company s business model whose objective is 1o hold fnancial assets
in order to collect contractual cash MNows: and

e The contractual erms of the instrament give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are SPPI
on the principal amount outstandimg.

Dbt financial assets meeting these criteria are measured initially at fair value plus ransaction costs.
They are subsequently measured at amontized cost using the effective interest method less allowance
for expected credit losses, Amaortized cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate (EIR). The
amortization is incleded in 'Interest income” in the statement of comprehensive income. Gains and
losses are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income when the asset is derecognized,
modified or impaired,

The Company’s financial assets at amortized cost includes “Cash and cash equivalents’,
‘Receivables’, "Claims advances” and “Rental deposit” under “Other noncurrant assers’

The Company may (mevocably elect at initial recognition to classtfy a financial asset that meets the
amontized cost critenia above as af FYTPL if that designatien eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch had the financial asset been measured at amortized cost.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Dbt instruments that neither meet the amortized cost nor the FVYOCI cotena, or that meet the criteria
but the Company has chosen to designate as at FVTPL &t initial recognition, are classified as financial
nssets at FVTPL, Equity investrents are classified as financial assets at FVTPL, unless the Company
irrevocably designates an equity invesiment that is not held for trading as at FVOCI at initial
recognition. The Company’s linancial assets al FVTPL inclwde mvestments in Unit Investment Trust
Funds (UTTFs) which are held Tor trading purposes,

(rains and losses ansing from changes {mark-to-marker) in the Tair value of the financinl assets al
FVYTPL are included in “Other income - miscellaneous’ account in the statement of comprehensive
INCOTe,

Reclassification of fnancial instraments

The Company reclassifies its financial assets when, and only when, there is a change in the

business model for managing the financial assets. Accordingly, the Company is required to reclassily
finnncial assets: (1) from amortized cost or FVOCT 10 FVPTL if the objective of the business model
changes so that the amortized cost or FYOCT cntena are no longer met; and, (1) from FVPTL to
amortized coat or FVOUCT if the objective of the business model changes so that the amortized cost or
FVOUC] eriteria start to be met and the charpeteristic of the instrament's contractual cash flows are
SPPI (it} from amortized cost to FVOCL ifthe business model changes so that the objective becomes
both 1o collect contractual cash flows and to sell or from FYOCT to amaortized cost if the objective of
the business model changes so that it becomes solely for the collection of contractual cash flows.

A change in business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases (0 perform an activity
that is significant to its operations.  Reclassifications shall be applied prospectively by the Company
and any previously recognized gaing, losses or imterest shall not be restated. Reclassilication of
equity financial assets, financial assets designated at FVPL and fnancial Liabilities is net allowed.



Financial liabilitier ar amortized cost

Issued fnancial instrements or their components, which are not designated at FYTPL are classified as
liabitities under *Payable to insurance principals’, *Accmed expenses’, and *Other habilities’, where
the substance of the contreclual arranzement results o the Company having an obligation either o
deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder, or 1o satisty the abligation other than by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of own equiry
shares.

The components of issued financial instruments that contain both liabihty and equity clements are
accounted for separately, with the equity component being assigned the residual amount afier
deducting From the instrument as a whole the amount separately determined as the fair value of the
liability component on the date of issee

Financial habilities at amortized cost are iatially recogmzed at the [ value of the consideration
recenved less direcily atinbutable transaction costs,

Impaimment of Financial Assels

The Company recognizes an allowance for ECL for all debt financial assets except those classified as
at FWTPL, The BECL 15 based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows thot the Company expects Lo receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective imterest rate which is determined by evaluating a range of
possible gutcomes, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable information about past
events, current conditions and forecasis of Tuture ecopomic conditions

The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral 10 the comtractial lenns,

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in cnedil risk since imitial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result fiom
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a |2-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which thers has been a sigmficant increase i credit risk since mnshal recognifion, a loss

allowance is required for credin losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, imespective
of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

The Company defines a financial instrument a$ in default, which is fully aligned with the delinition of
credit impaired, in all cases when the borrower becomes at least 90 days past due om its contractual
paymenis, As a part of a qualitative assessment of whether o customer is in default, the Company also
considers a variety of instances that may imdicate umlikeliness 1o pay. When such events oceur, the
Company carefully considers whether the event should result in treating the customer as defaulted.

For trade recervables, the Company applies the simplified approach in calculating ECL since these
receivables arise from transactions within the scope of PFRS 15 and do not contain significant
financing component, Under the simplified approach, the Company does not track changes in credit
risk, but mstead recognizes a loss allowance based on hifetime ECLS al each balance sheet date, On
the other hand, the Company ¢aleulates the ECL for its cash in bank by estimating the applicable
exposure at default, probability of default, and loss given default.



Derecoonition of Financial Instnuments

Fimancial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of financial assels)
15 derecopnized when:

¢ Therights to receive cash flows [rom the asset have expired; or
The Company retains the right te recerve cash Oows (rom the assel, but has assumed an
obligation 1o pay them in full without material delay o a thind party under a “pass-through™
I].I'I'HJ'IgETI’!II:I.'l[Z ar

#  The Company has transfermed s rights 1o receive cash flows from the asset and either

{a} has transferred substantially all the nsks and rewards of the asset, or (b} has neither iransferred
nar relsngd the fsks and rewands of the asset but has transterred the control of the asset

When the Company has transferred s rights w0 recerve cash Mows from an assel or hes entered o o
pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the assel nor transferred control of the asset, the asset 15 recopmzed to the extent of the
Company’s confinging invelvement in the asset, Continuing mvolvement that takes the lform of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
assel and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Write-offs

Financial asseis are wrinten off either partially or in their entirety when the Company no longer
expects collections or recoveries within a foreseeable future, If the amount 10 be written off is preater
than the accomulated loss allowance. the difference is first treated as an addition o the allowance that
i3 then applied against the gross carrying amount, Any subsequent recovenes are credited to
provision for credit losses.

Finameial Nabifitles

A financial Liability is derecognized when the obligation under the hability is discharged, cancelled,
or has expired. When an existing Anrancial hability s replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecogmition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability, snd the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of
COnprElensive Inoome.

Legses

The Company assesses al coniract inception whether a contract 12, or contans, a lease, That 15, 10 the
contract convevs the right to control the use of an identified asset for & period of tme in exchange for
a cansideration.

Lease Nabilities

Al the comimencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured ar the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term.  The lease payments mclude fixed
payments (including mn substanice Dixed paymenis) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments thal depend on an index or o rate, and amounts expected 10 be paid under residual value
guarantzes. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
cerain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Company cxercising the option 10 erminate. The variable lease payiments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as expense in the period on which the event or
condition that friggers the payment occurs,



In calenlating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental borrowang rate
(IBR) a1 the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. Afler the commencement date, the amount of lcase lizbilities is increased to refleet the
gecretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made.  In addition, the cammving amount of
lease habilities s remeasured of there 15 2 modification, o change n the lease term, a change in the in-
substance Mxed lease payments or-a change in the assessment 1o purchase the underlving asset,

Short-term leaves and leases of Tow-vialue agsets

The Company applies the short=term lease recognition exempiion to its short-term leases. [0 also
applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption 10 assets that are considered to be low-
value. Lease payments on short-tenm leases and leases of low-value assets are recognized as expense
an a struizht-lne basis over the lease (erm.

Properny and Equlpoieint
Property and equipment are carmed at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization and any
impairment in vahe,

The initial cost of property and equipmen! comprises of its purchase price, including taxes and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its infended
use. Expenditures incurred after the assets have been put into operation, such as repairs and
mamlenance and overhead costs, are charged against currenl operatiens. In silGations where il can be
clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an incrense in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of propenty and equipment beyond its
originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditunes are capitalized as additicnal costs of
property and equipment. When assets are retired or otherwize disposed of, the cost and the related
accumuloted depreciation and any impairment loss are removed rom the aceounts and any resulting
e or Joss is credited woor charged against cudrent operalions,

[t 15 the Company’s policy to classify nght-of-use assets as part of property and equpment. The
Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (1.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are initially measured at cost, ess any
nceumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
habilities, The imial cost of nght=ol-use assets includes the amount of lease labilities recopmzed,
initial direct costs incurmed, lease payments made at or betore the commencement date |ess any lease
incentives received and estimate of costs (o be incurred by the lessee in dismantiing and removing the
underlving asset, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the wnderlying assei to the
condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce
inventarics.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives (EUL)Y of the
respective assets as follows:

EUL
Fumniture, fixtures and equipment 3 o5 years
Transporation equipment 5 years
Leasehold improvement 5 years or the
related lease
terms,
whichever is
shorter
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Unless the Company is reasonably certain t0 obtaim ownership of the leased assct at the end of the
leasze term, the recognized right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorer
of their estimated uselul life and lease term. Right-of-use assets are subject o impairment.

The EUL and the depreciation method are reviewed perwodically to ensure that the penod and the
method of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of econemic benefits from items of
property and equipment.

The carrving values of property and equipment are reviewed Tor impairment when events or changes
in circumstances indicate the carmying values may not be recoverable, If any such indication exists
and where the carryving values exceed the estimated recoveruble amounis, the assets or cash-
generating uniis {OGLUz) are written down 1o their recoverable amounts,

Software Costs

Costs that are directly associated with identifiable and unigue software comtralled by the Company
amd will generate economic benefits exceeding ¢osts beyond one vear are capitalized, Direct costs are
capitalized during the period of soltware development and are amostized on a straight-hne basis over
the expected wsefil life of L0 vears upon complation.

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programs are recognized as expense when
incurred.

Expenditures which enhance or extend the performance of software programs bevond their original
specifications are recogmzed os capital improvements and added to the gnginal cost of the software.

The useful life of capitalized software cost 15 assessed and reviewed periodically. Changes in the
expected wselul lile are accounted for by changing the amortization period and method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting esfimates.

Impairment of Non-flinancial Assets

At each balance sheet date, the Company assesses whether there 15 any indication that itz non-
Mmancial assets (c.g.. property and equipment, software cost) may be impaired. When an indicator of
impairmment exists or when annual mmpatrment lesting for an asset 15 required, the Company makes a
Formal estimate of recoverable amount. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds 115
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recovershle amount
The recoverable amount 1% the hizgher of an assel’s or a OGS fair value less costs to sell and 11s
value in uze (VILD, 1nassessing VIU, the estimated Tutire cash flows are discounted to their present
value using the pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. For an assel that does ol generate largely independent cash
inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGL o which the asset belongs. Impairment
losses are recognized under “Provision for credit and impaimment losses” in the statement of
comprehensive income,

An impairment foss is recognized only if the carrying armount of an assel exceeds its recoverable
amount. An impairment lozs 1s charged agoinst operations m the vear in which it arises. A
previously recognized impaimment [oss is reversed by a credit o current operations (o the extent that it
does not restate the asset 1o a carrying amount in excess of what would have been determined (net of
any accumulated depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.

Pavablz to Insurance Principals
Payable o insurance principals pertain to premiums collected from policyholders but not yel remitted
10 insuUrance coOmMpanies,



Eqguity

Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued and outstanding. When the shares are sold
ot a premuium, the difference between the proceads and the par value is credited to " Additional paid-in
capital’ account. Direct costs inowred related to equity isspance, such as underwriting, accounting
end legal fees, printmg costs and taxes are chargeable to *Additionsl pauid-in capital” account, 1f the
additional paid-in capital is not sufficient, the excess is charged against the "Retained eamings,”

When the Company issues more than one class of stock, n separate account i mantained for each
class of stock and the number of shares jssued

Retained earnings represent accumulated eamings of the Company less dividends declared.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services is
fransferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects
1w be entitled in exchange for those goods-and services. The Company assesses il reventie
arrangements against specific cnteria in order to determime if it 1s acting as principal or agent. The
Company has penerlly concluded that it is acting as an agent in its revenue arrangeméents becanse it
does not control the specified goods or services befiore these are transferred to the costomer,

Therefore, the Company’s revenue 15 the net amount of consideration that the Company retains afler

paving the other party the consederation recerved in exchange for the oeds or services to be provided
by that party.

For revenue stream covered by PERS 13 (i.¢. commission incomel, the Company exercise judgement,
taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and circumstances when applying each step of the
five-step model 1o contracts with customers.

The following revenus recognition criteria must also be met betore revenue is recognized:

Clonmilasion ircome
Revenue from commissions is recognized upon collection of insuranee premium from policyholders.

Intgvast income
Interest income on placements 1s recognized as 11 aocrues, faking into account the effective yield on
the assets.

Miseeilaneons e
(7ain {loss) from investment securities arise from changes in fair valoe of financial assets al FVTPL.
It alse imcludes Toreipn exchange gains or losses,

Expense Recognition

Expenses are recognized when decrease in future economic benefits related to a decrease in an asset
or an increase of a liability has arisen that can be measured reliably. Expenses are recognized when
incurred. Costs and expenses encompass losses as well as those expenses that anse in the course of
the ordinary activities of the Company:

Income Taxes
Income tax on profit or loss for the vear comprises currenl and deferred 1axes. Income tax is
determined in accordance with the Philippine Tax Law, Provision for income tax is recognized in the

statement of comprehensive income,
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Crrrent faxes

Current tax assets and current fax labilities are measuned at the amount expected 1o be recovered
trom or paid 1o the taxation authorities. The 1ax rales and tax laws used 1 compute the amount are
those that are enacied or substantively enacted at the halance sheet date.

Current tax is recognized in profit or loss, excepl when they relate 1o iems that are recogmized in OC]
or directly in eguity, in which ¢ase, the current and deferred tax are-also recopnized in OCI or directly
In cquity, respectively,

Consideration of wncertam fux position

IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over income Tax Trearments requires the Company to consider whether it is
probable thar a mxanon authority will aceept an uncertam tax treatment. 17 the Company concludes
that the income tax position is not probable of being accepted, the effect of the uncertainty is reflected
in the Company’s accounting for income taxes,

Dieferred faves

Deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet liability method, on all temporary differences at the
balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrving amounts for
linancial reporting purposes al the balance sheet date,

Deferred tax labilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, with certain exceptions.
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, camyviorward of unused
tax credits from the excess of minimum corporate income 1ax { MCIT) over the regular corporate
income tax {RCITY, and unused net operating loss carryover (NOLCOY, to the extent that it is
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences and caomyforvard of unused tax credits from MCIT and unused NOLCO can be wtilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced 1o the
extent that it is no longer probable that sutficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred income fax assel lo be whilized. Unrecognized defemred income tax assets are reassessed
at each balance sheet date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profit will allow the deferred income tax asset 10 be recovered.

Deferred rax assets and deferred tax liabilites are measured at the tax rates that are apphcable 1o the
period when the asset is realized or the Liability iz settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted of subsiantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

"
Transaction and balances

Far hinancial reposting purposes, the foreipn curreney-denominated monetary assets and liabilities are
translated in Philippime pesos based on the closing rate prevailing at the balance sheet date and
foreign currency-denominated income and expenses, at the prevailing exchange rate at the date of
transaction. Foreign exchanpe differences arising from restatements of foreign currency-denominated
monetary assels and liabilities are credited 1o or charged against operations in the period in which the
rajes change,

Mommaornetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates.of the initial transactions. Monmonetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are transkated using the exchange rates al the date when the fair value was
determined.



Yilue-Added Tax (VAT and Deferred Output YA

FEovenues, expenses, assels and liabilities are recognized net of the amount of VAT, excepl where the
VAT incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in
which case the VAT is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset oras part of the
expense Mem as applicable; Deferved output WAT pertains o the amount of Ouwtpat VAT on sales on
credit which have not vet been collected as at balance sheet date.

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as pant
of *Other current assers” or "Other liabilities” in the balance sheet,

K etirement Benefits

The Company is covered by a nonconteibutory defined benefit renrament plan. A defined benefit
plan 1 a retirement plan that defines an amaount uf'pn:nsir.-n benefit that an employee will receive on
retirement. usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation.

Pefined bewefit plan

The net defined benefit hability or asset 15 the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit
obligation an the balance sheet date reduced by the fair value of plin assets (7 any ), adjusted for any
effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling,  The asset ceiling is the present value
of any ecomomic benefits avasloble in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions 10 future
contributions to the plan.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is actuarially determined using the
projected unit credit method

Defined benefit costs comprise the following:

a, Service costs;
b. Net interest on the net defined benefit ability or asset; and
£, PRemessurements of net defined benefit Labiliby or assel

Service costs which inchude current service costs and past service costs are recognized as expense in
the statement of comprehensive mcome.  Past service costs are recognized when plan amendment or
curtailment occurs.  These amounts are calculated periodically by independent gualified actuanes.

Met interest on the net defined benefit habthity or asset 15 the change dunng the peniod in the net
defined benefit Tiability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determinead by applyving
the discount rate based on government honds to the net defined benefit lahility or asset. Met interest
on the net defined benefit liability or asset 15 recognized as expense or income in statement of
comprehensive meome.

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any change i the
effect of the asset ceilmg (excluding net infersst on defined benefin Hability) are recognized
immediately in OCI in the period in which they anse. Remeasurements are not reclassified to
statement of comprehensive income in subsequent penods.

Plan ngsets ore assets that are held by-a long-tenm employes benefit fand. Plan assets are not
available 10 the creditors of the Company, nor can they be paid directly to the Company. Fair value
of plan assets 15 based on market price mformation. When no market price 18 available, the fair value
of plan assets is estimated by discounting expected future cash flows using a discount rate that
reflects both the risk associated with the plan aszets and the maturity or expected disposal date of
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thase assets (o, if they have no matunty, the expected period untl the setlement of the related
obligations), I the fair value of the plan assets is higher than the present value of the defined benefit
abligation, the measurement of the resulting definred benefit asset is limited to the present value of
economic benefis available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contnbutions
1o fhe plan.

The Company's nght to be renmbursed of some or all of the expenditure required to settle a defined
benefit obligation is recognized as a separte asset at fair value when and only when reimbursement 15
virfually certain.

share-based Pavments (Stock Granis)

Employees (including senior execitivesy of the Company received remuneration in the form of share-
based payments (stock grants), wherehy emplovess rendered services as consideration for equity
matrumenis {equity-seitled transactions) of the Parent Company. The Parent Company has the
oblizabion to setile the transaction with the Company's emplovees by provading its own equity
Insiruments.

Eynitv-seitled fromsooifions

The cost of equitv-settled transactions 18 determined by the fair valoe ar the date when the grant 13
made using an appropriate valuation model. That cost is recognized i emplovee benefits expense,
together with a cemresponding increase in equity (other capital reserves), over the period in which the
service and, where applicable, the performance conditions are fulfilled (the vesting period), The
cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date unml the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Company’s best estimate of
the nmnber of equity insmuments that will ulimately vest, The expense or credit in the statement of
comprehensive income for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognized as at
ihe beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not faken into account when determining the
erant date fair value of awands, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of
the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached
o an award, bt without an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions, Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions, No
expense is recogiized for awards that do not slamately vest becawse non-market performance and/ar
service conditions have not been met, Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vested irmespective of whether the market or pon-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all cther perfomance and/or service conditons are satished. When the terms
of an equityv-3ettled award are modified, the minimum expense recognized is the grant date fair value
of the unmodified award, provided the onginal vesting terms of the award are met. An additionsl
expense, measursd as ai the date of modification, is recognized Tor any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-baged pavment transaction, or is otherwizse beneficial to the emploves
Where an award is cancelled by the Company or by the counterpanty, any remaming element of the
fair valee of the award is expensed immediately through profit or loss.

When the equity-setiled transactions vest immediately but the grant date is not vet determined as of
balance sheet date, the Company recognizes the expense and the cormesponding increase in equity
using the estimated grant date far value as of balance sheet date. Subsequently, ance the eranl date (s
determined, the Company revizes the estmmate bazed on the actazal grant date fair value.



Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) asa
resull of a past event and ot 15 probable that an outflow of resources embodving economic benefits
will be requirad Lo selibe the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provizions are determined by
discounting the expected fuure cash Mows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current markel assessments of
the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

Where discounting ts used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time 15 recognized as an
interest expense. When the Company expects a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an
insurance contract, the reimbursenyent is recopnized a5 a separate asset but only when the
reimbursement is probable

Contingent Assets and Ligbihiies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed unless the
possibility of an outflow of assels embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not
recognized but are disclosed in the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is
prohable,

Events after the Balanee Sheet Date

Post vear-end events that provide additional information about the Company s balance sheet at the
reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post year-end events that
are nof adjusting events are disclosed in the financial statgments when material

Standards and Interpretation lssued but Mot yet Effective

There are new PFESs, amendments, interprefation and annual improvements, 1o existing standarnds
which are effective for annual periods subsequent to 2022, Management will adopt the following
relevant pronouncements in accordance with their tranzitional provistons; and. unless otherwise
stated, none of these are expecied to have significant impact oo the Company’s financial statements:

Eftective beginning on or after Janpary 1, 2023
s Amendments 10 PAS 12, Deferved Tax refuted 1o Asseis and Liahilities arising fram & Single
Tranzaction

& Amendments o PAS B Defininion of Accowaring Esrimares
s Amendments to PAS 1 and PFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Effective begtnmimg on o after Januan: J, 2024
s Amendments 1o PAS |, Classification of Licbilities as Current or Noncwrrent
=  Amendments to PFRS 16, Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

Effective beglnning on or affer Jantary 1, 2025
»  PFRS 17, fsurance Confracts

Deferved Effectivity

= Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidared Financial Statements, and PAS 28, Sale or Contributions
of Aisets berween an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
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Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with PFRS reguires the Company to make
estimales that affect the amoonts reported in the Company 's financial statements and accompanying
notes. Future events may oceur which will cause the asswnptions used in arriving at the estimales o
change. The effects of any change in estimates are reflected in the financial stalements as they
become reasonably determinahle.

Judgements and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical expenience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumsiances,

Judgments

[

Leaser — Determiming the lease terin

The Company’s lease contract includes extensions and termination options, The Company
exercises judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably ceriain whether or not 1o exercise the
option 1o renew of tenminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors such as leasehold
improvements and location to create an economic ingentive for it fo exercise either the renewal ar
termination After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lense term if there is &
significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affecis its ability to
exercise or not to exercise the oplion 10 rengw or [0 lemminate,

Estimintes

.

Leases - Estimating the incremental barrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses s
incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that
the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with & similar security, the
[unds necessary o obtain an asset of a similar value to the nght-of-use asset n a similar
geonmmis enviranment, The 1BR therefore reflecis what the Company “would have 1o pay’,
which requires estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need 1o be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the |BR using
obzervable mputs {by reference to prevailmg nsk-free mites) adjusted fo take info aceount the
entity's credit nisk (1.e., credit spread).

The Company™s lease liability amounted to #1986 million and £26.76 million as of
December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively (Mote 13),

Present valpe of retirement obligation

The present value of the pension obligation is determined using actuanal valuation. The actuarial
valuation involves making varous assumplions. These include the determination of the discount
rates, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the
underlying assumptions and its long-tenm nature, defined benefit obligations are highly sensitive
o changes in these assumplions.

The salary projection rate was based on the historical irend of safary increase rate of the
Company. The mortality rate was based on the 1994 US Group Anmuity Mortality Table. The
assumed discount rates were determined using the market yields on Philippine government bonds
with terms consistent with the expected employee benefit payout as at the balance sheet date.
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As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, pension liability amounted to #2.25 million and pension
azser amounted to #2985 million, respectively. Further details aboul the assumptions used are
diselosed in Note 15

o Recognition of deferved oy asseis
Significant judgment 15 required to determine the amaount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with future
lax planning strategies. There are many transactions and caloculabions for which the ultimane tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of
these nuatters is different [eom the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impict the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination was
made,

e Company's estimates of future taxable income indicate that certain temporary differences
will be realized in the future, The defierred tax assets recognezed as of December 31, 2022 and
2021 amounted w#11.72 million and 10,50 million (Mot 16),

4, Fair Yaloe Measurement

Az at December 31, 2022 and 2021, the carryinge values of financial asseis and financial liabilities as
reflected in the balance sheeis and related nodes approximate their respective fair values. The fair
value adjustments of rental deposit under other noncurrent assets are not significant.

Cash and cash equivalents. Receivables, Pavalle o insurance principals, Acorwed expenses and
C2cher fiabilities (excluding statutory payables)

The carrying values approximate their fair values in view of the relatively short-term manurities of
these financial instments,

Fivaroial assers ot FPTPL
Fair value of quoted private debt securities are based on quoied market prices. Fair vilue of money
market funds is determined by reference to the published net asset value per umit.

Fair Yalue Hisrarchy

All assets and liabilities for which fair value 15 measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, deseribed as follows, based on the lowest level inpur that
15 sipnificant o the fair value measurement as a whole:

e Level 1« Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or habilitics

s Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value mensurement 15 directly or indirectly obzervable

= Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement 15 unchservable

For assets and habilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurmng basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred betwesn levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole)at each balance sheet date

AR AT
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The following tebles summanze the carrying amount and fair values of the linangial nstrments,
analyzed based on hierarchy described above for determining and disclosing the fair value of
financial instruments by valuation technigue:

2022 2021
Carrving Carrying
Value Lowvel 2 Value Levei 2

Assets measared at fair valoe
Financial assets at FYTPL

Lioit investment trast fund . RIS3968,214  PIS396R. 214  B131,.200 389 RI5],209 389

There were no financial instruments clessified under Level | and 3 10 2022 and 2021, There were no
transfers between levels dunng the year.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Thas account eonsesis of

2022 2021
Cash in bank {Note 19) P333.031.502  P314,605,738
Petty cash fund 13,100 13,100

P3133,044.602 Pil4,618.338

Cash im bank mcludes demand deposit accounts which eamn mterest st the prevailing bank deposat
rates and special savings accounts which earm interest at annual rates ranging from 0.10% to0 0.13% in
2022 and 2021, Imterest income recogmized on cash in bank in 2022 and 2021 amounied to

#0317 mullion and #0.3 5 million, respectively.

Short-term investments include special savings deposil accounts with maturities of less than three
months from the dates of placement. Short-lerm investments in 2021 exmed nterest at annwal rates
ranging from 0.75% to L00%. Interest income recosnized on shoem-tenn investiments in 2021
amounted to #0,17 million. The remaining short-term mvestments as of December 31, 2020 with
original terms to maturity of less than three months matured in 2021,

Heceivables

Receivables include advances to employees, receivables from the Parent Company (Note 19).
receivables from Social Secunty Svystem, and clarms advances made and due [rom [nsurers.

It its capacity as an insurance broker, the Company collects premiums from policyholders and, after
deducting its commissions, remits the premiums fo the respective insurance companies. Lincollecied
premiums from policyholders are receivables that are not recorded in the Company's balance sheets.

Az ol December 31, 2022 and 2021, the gross ameunts of uncellected premums dug from poalicyholders

for contracts sold through the Company's brokerage service amounted to 260263 million and
P433 37 million, respeciively {see Note 12}
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7. Financial Assets at Fair Valoe Through Frofit or Loss
As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, financial assets at FVYTPL pertain to LITFs placed with the
Parent Company’s Trast Groap. Oains from changes in the fair value amounting (o P2.76 million and
£1.17 million in 2022 and 2021, respectively, are included in “Other income - miscellaneous’ in the
statements of comprehensive mcome.
3, Orther Current Assetls
This account consists of
2022 2021
Prepaid taxes P43,515,573 R37,321,292
Others 4,107,003 2691510
P47.642.576 #40,012 8502
Prepaid taxes represent income @x credits as evidenced by income tax returns. For the years ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company utilized income tax credits amaounting to P35 48 million
and #28.17 million, respectively,
‘Orthers’ include input vat and ereditable withholding taxes for submission and filing in subsequent
period.
% Property and Equipment

The compositon of and mevements in this sccount follow:

2022
Furaliure,
Fiztures  Right-nl-use
Transporiathn Leasehold and Office Assef-
Eguipment  lmprosemeni Equipmmeot  Ofice Space Toial
s
Al Janiasry 1 PE151,317  P7.442.877  Pl64cll88s PIS G615 Pa%,0R1T0S
Additions 469280 241,750 65,914 - 30% D50
Derecopmniions (65000 RS = - (625, K
AL Deconber 31 10, 196683 THRHGET 17156500 35816615 T, E66.655
Avcumulated Depreclation
Ab Fanmary | 4,963 874 5428510 12,453,677 0,553,787 32,629 431
Depreciastion 1,200,556 1102 72X L1I5.165 TA16ERIS 11,504, I8
Derecagnitions (624, F 0, - - = - (24, g
A December 31 5,539,735 6, 731232 14,598,542 [l R 43, 558,11
Mot Book Valse a1 December 3 P4, 636,568 P355.395 P2LESTO5E  PIS107533  PAT.2T TS
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Furmirure,
Fiumres  Hiple-ofuse
Tmpsporiation Lensehicld aml Ciffics Assct-
Equipment __ Imiprovericn Equipment  Oifice Space Tocal
s
A Jariary | P48 542 BLEISATD  PL263T23E  PISSXGEEE PREGITATS
Additians L. 403975 227,247 LR RN - 3,464 830
At Dhecernber 31 B351 31T 7442 77 b AR KRG 35 836 623 G 305
Accomulated Depreciation
At January | 1915, 79 & 5RT 003 I &TS, 230 2ARE 447 2,370 478
Depreciation LOMOST 1041495 2008447 1188328 11289354
Ap Dheeember 31 4. a1 HTH 5628510 P21 443 1T 0 523,77 A2 630,432
Mot Boakl Value at Deccmber 31 P31 IRE A0 ] 814,367 PIOTI MG  RIe2TIESE RIS 45RATY

In 2022 the Company sold transportation equpment with net book value aggregating to 2104 for a

consideration of #1,000,00,

As ol December 3, 2022 and 2021, the costs of fully depreciated assets snll in wse amonted o

E1EO0 million and B16.539 million, respectively.

There are no restrictions on titles of property and equipment and the Company does not have any

coniractual commyitment for acqu:isitiﬂn ol property and equipment as of December 31, 2027 and

2021,

{45

=software Costs

The movements in software costs follow:

2022 2021
Cost
At January | F11,500,744 11,033,387
Additions 307,617 455,357
Al Decemnber 31 11,898,361 11.550,744
Accomulated Amortization
At January | 5,768,544 4474 ORR
Amortization 1,141,730 1,339,756
At December 31 6,M5,574 5,763,844
Net Book Value at December 31 #4.992.787 #5826, 900

(A FU AN
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11.

Other Noncurrent Assces
This account cosists oft

2022 2021
Claims advances P5,304,489 P6,401.735
Software not vet in use 4,560,599 -
Eental deposit (Note 19) 1.872.371 LEI2.3T
(hhers 87,664,356 B8, 767838
09,402,115 97,04 [ 904

Allpwance for impairment [ozses (U2, 268 845) {95,169,611)
P6,433.270 BLET2ATI

Claims advances pertain to insurance claims advanced by the Company on behalt of the insurance
principals for emergency purposcs te policyholders, which are mostly educational institutions. As of
December 31, 2022 and 2021, this account has been fully provided for with aliowance for impairment
tosses. In 2022, the Company reversed allowance for impairment losses on recoveries from claims
advances amounting to 8110 milliomn.

Tn 2022, the Company incumred software costs amounting to P4.36 million which is not vet available
for use. The Company expects to utilize the software once it goes live in 2024,

‘(dhers’ pertains to mizcellancous assets and CWTs whose related certificates are awaiting
submussion to the Company amounting o B12.88 million in 2022 and #13.98 million in 2021, As of
December 31, 2022 and 2021, this account has been fully provided for with allowance for umpainment
losses, CWTs whose related certificates were subsequently received and claimed amounted 1o

P10 million in 2022 and P1.2] million m 202 1.

. Pavable to Insurance Principals

This represents insurance premiums already collected from the policvholders and 1o be rematted to
Virous insurance companies within 90 davs from inception date of the policy. Unremitted insurance

premiums are held ina fiduciary capacity and are presented as *Pavable to insurance pringipals’ in the
Company's balance sheets,

Az of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the amount of premiums that are due to the insurance companies
and unpaid by the policyholders for contracts sold through the Company’s brokerage service. net of
the related commizsion, amounded o 32707 million and PL09.41 million, respectively, Thess
amounts are nod recognized i the Company™s Balance sheets (sge MNate 6),

13.

Leases

The Company has a lease contract for 118 office space Tor five (5) years from September 1, 2020 10
August 31, 2025, with an oplion to renew the lease term under mutually acceptable terms and
conditions. The Company's obligations under its lease are secured by the lessor’s title o the leased
assel, Geperally, the Company is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased asset
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The following are the amounts recogmzed in the smtements of comprehensive income:

2022 2021
Deprecigtion expense of right-of-use asset included in
property and equipment {Note 9) #7,165,325 P7,165325
[nterest expense on lease liability 1,094,063 1,405,751
P8,250 388 PE.S571.076

The interest expense is mcluded under “miscellaneous éxpense’ account,

The mollforward anabysis of [ease lability follows:

022 2021
As al January | P26,759,722 P12.968.282
Eenewal = =
Accretion of interest 10k, (Wi 3 1 405,751
Payments (7,995.027) (7.614311)
As al December 31 P19.B38,758 026,759,122
Less leasge hiability, current poction (7,694,772} (6,979 3680
Lease bability, non-cument portion Fi12,163,986 BI19,780,354
14, Ovher Liabilities
This account consists of:
2022 2021
Financial liabilities
Accounts pryable - premium payments PI126,636,647  $130.255923
Acoounts pavable — others 2897984 10,901,878
129,534,631 141,157,801
Mon-Tinanchal liabilitkes
YAT pavable - net 6.524.057 4,570,910
Deferred output VAT 973424 3309824
Others 4484426 4.739.559
11,981.907 12,620,293
P141.516,538  PISIT7R.0M

Acecounts payable — premium payments include (a) msurance policy premiums collected but not yet
due as of balance sheet date; and (h) premium collections received through the Company’s authorized
banks which cannot be applied due to missing pelicy information, These premiums will be remitted
tor the respective insurance companies once due and already applied to the policy.

Accounts pavable — others include {a) premiums for refund to policvholders dug to excess payments
or cancelled policies; {b) bank statement movements with incomplete information; and (¢} unreleased
aperating expense checks.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, “Others’ pertaing mainky 10 government contributions and other
regulatory payments {i.e., 588, PHIC, HDMF and withholding taxes).



15 Retirement Flan

The Company has a funded nonconinbutory defined benefit retirement plan covening substantially all
its officers and regular employees, Under this retirement plan, all covered officers and employees are
entitled 1o cash benefits afier satisfying certain age and service requirements.

The latest actuarial vahation study of the retirement plan was made as of December 31, 2022

The funds are administered by the Truzt Department of the Parent Company under the supervision of
the Retirement Committee. The Retiremen: Committee is responsible for giving direction ta the
frustee o the invesimient of the assets ol the fund. The Retiremient Cominities defines the nvestment
strategy as often as necessary, at least annually, especially in the case of significant market
developments or changes to the structure of the plan participants, When defining the investment
strategy, it takes into account the plan’s objectives, bencfit obligations and risk capacity. The
investment strategy 15 defined in the form of a long-term tareet structure (invesiment policy). The
Retirement Committee delegates the implementation of the investment policy in accordance with the
investment stratey as well as various principles and objectives to an Investment Committee. which
also consists of members of the Board of Trustees, a Director and a Controller.

The existing regalatory framework, Republic Act {RA) No. 7641 requires a provision for retirement
pay to qualified private sector employees in the absence of any retirement plan in the entity, provided
however, that the employee’s retirement benefits under any collective bargaining and other
agrreements shall not be less than those provided under the law. The law does not regquirg minimum
funding of the plan,

As of Decernber 31, 2022 and 2021, the principal actuarial assumptions used i determiming the
retirement liability for the Company's retirement plan are shown below:

2022 2021
Discount rate 6. 79%, &, L4%5h
Future salary increases b 00, B 005
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The changes in the defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets are as follows:

Wl
Ml heneld cost Femcasuremenls in uther camprehensive incsine
Relwrm sn
plan Aetuarial Artuarial
EARLTS Avimsrial changes chamges
leaciuding chanpes  erising from  arising frem
amuonmt  arisesg o chamgcs in aleangcs lin
Janmary 1, Current inchwled  expermnoes  demopraphis Mnanicial Denelis Tramfers Decenber 31,
32 serview eos1 D Indcrest Sulsiofal bn nef interesi) ndjusiments  mssumplions  assimptions Sulsotal pald Cumtribaifen  te affiliade pL e
Present vahie of
defined bonof
abligstinn A A4l ki RFETOT.O0 PEERThE B3 Z63 544 P BFISIRMMG PLOSEATE PR DRG) 1, 5740 [F4,0110,982) P ELERD) PILI6542]
Fwrvalue af
plan assels {16.A20.434) = [k ] (hT0.HATS L7160 - - - 107D &% L,110.88E - C— (R SIEAT)
Mel ilelmal
tenafil
lighility (asset}  (P2O980.0%4)  FL707 190 PE2LA%N) PR SRITH D ETH BLARR006  FIIREATE  (FLITEIRE) BI04 TR | - [_"-“H'J:' FIEL=M
U]
ik baneli gt Remstsnrsnents i ither comahensive imcmme
Besturs on plan Actsarial Autuznal
TETTG Aciumrial chamges chanpes
fexehiding shanpes  arsing e ks lenim
mmaunl  areing fom changes n chemipad my
Tanuars 1. Currend webnded  espericaces  demographic finunszal Hemedits [Deoember 51,
M2l seevicocosl Wil mokerisi Sebanied in el interdst]  adjustrests  aiswimgtiong  assamphioss Sinial pEsl  Casribmtion 202
P valuse of
eleed bomeiil
uhBgalawn P A0 PEsd S PIEGSI1 PRD002.0TH P AT PAULR S [P2ULEY (PLOTL M0 p- - P13 440,540
Fair valae of
plin el {12 i 210 i 0 002) {10,000 5 (1631501 - - - 15635, 1 50y =13 ueddn)  |16A21AM
it chefininl
henefit
liahiity {asset) (] 5461921 P2 EI2 S0 (EAG A0 #2 TER T {REG3, | 567 BB AT PARLGES  [(POHEDR] PRI P- (ELTEG0NG)  (PSE]ARE)
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The details of the remeasurement gainas on retirement plan are as follows:

2022 2021
Al Jonuary 1 B a7l 86 BRE,302, 597
Eemeasurement gams [losses) on retirement plan (2,645,794} 434 902
Dreferred tax asset (hability) during the year 661,449 (358.725)
CREATE adjustment - deferred tax = 503,042
Al December 31 P7.O87.471 $9.971,816

As of Decernber 31, 2022 and 2021, the major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the wtal
plan assets are as follows:

2022 2021
Amount 5 Amount UG
Cazh equivalents F34.946 0.29% B2.925.536 17.82%
UITF= 11,842,380 0. 36% 13,446,602 £1.58%
Oiher asseils 56,740 0.48% 63,367 (. 590%
Other accountabilities (154713 (0. 13%%) (14,071} [ 00%)
PILYIR 60 1% Plad2] 434 10000

Shown below 15 the matunity analvsis of the undiscounted benefit payments:

2022 2021
Less than one year P1.282.127 |
More than one year Lo five years 556,454 3,649 647
More thamn five years 1o 10 years 18,694,707 18,259,471
More than 10 years to 13 years i, 904 TS50 4 343 54
More than 15 vears fo 20 vears 16,052,527 15,653,319
More than 20 vears B11,737.669 Heb ETE, 160

The average duration of the defined benefit obligation as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 is 9 yeus
and 3 vears, respectively,

The Company expects 1o contrbute #4.72 milhon to its defined benetit pension plan in 2023,

The sensitivity analysis below, determined based on reasonably possible changes of each significant
assumption on the retirement benefit obligation as of the balance sheet date assuming all other
assumptions were held constant, illustrates the impact of key assumptions on the retirement benefil
ohligation:

Increase (decrease)

rmLmaaea

2022 2021
Discount rate
=1.00% (PO06,49T) (P792.5094)
-1 1,116,530 1,143 854
Salary increase rafte
=1.00% Li75.632 1,48 126
~1.00% (HO0,670) (763,749
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16, Ineome Tax

Income taxes mchude corporate income lax, a3 discussed below, and final taxes paid at the rate of
20.00% and 15.00% on gross Philippine peso and US dollar denommated interest income,
respectively, from bank deposits and investments.

Republic Act (RA)Y Mo, 9337, An Act Amending National Internal Revenue Code, as amended by
EA No. 10963 otherwise known as the Tax Reform for Acceleration and Inclusion (TRAIN) and
BA No, 11534 otherwizse known as Corporate Recovery and Tax [ncentives for Enterprises
(CREATE), provides that regular corporate income tax (RCIT) rate shall be 25 00% while interest
expense allowed as a deductible expense is reduced to 20,000 of inferest income subject o final tax.

A minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) of 1.00% until June 30, 2023 under CREATE on modified
gross income is computed and compared with the RCIT. Excess MCIT over RCIT can be used as a
tax credit against future income lax Hability for the next three years. In addition, any net operating
lass carey over (NOLCO) is allowed as a deduction from taxable income in the next thres years from
ihe year of inceplion

Optional standard dedoction {OSD) equivalent to 40.00% of gross income may be claimed as an
alternative deduction in computing for the RCIT. Gross income shall mean gross sales less sales
returns, discounts and allowances and cost of services. The Company elected 1o claim itemized
deductions instead of OSD in computing for the RCIT n 2022 and 2021,

Revenue Regulations Mo, 10-2002 defines expenses 10 be classified as enferainment, amusement and
recreation {EAR) expenses and sets a limit for the amount that is deductible for tax purposes. The
Company’s deductible EAR expenses are hmited 1o 1.00% of nel revenues.

Relevant Tax Updates

Tax Refornr for Accelevarion and fnclusion fTRAIN) Law

Republic Act (RA) No. [0963, the Tax Reform for Acceleration and Inclusion (TRAINY, is the first
package of the comprehensive tax reform program of the government. The bill was signed into law
on December 19, 2017 and took effect on January 1, 2018, amending some proviziens of the ald

Philippine fax svstem.

Except for resident foreign corporations, which is still subject to the 7.50% rate (but was also changed
to 15.00% under CREATE}, tax on interest income of foreign currency deposit was mcreased to

|- 5.00%% under TRAIN, Documentary stemp tax on bank checks, drafts, certificate of deposit not
bearing interest, all debt instraments, bills of exchange, letters of cradit, mortgages, deeds and others
are now subjected to a higher rate.

Covporate Recovery and Tax fncentives for Enterprises {CREATE) At

RA No. 11534 otherwise known as Corporate Recovery and Tax Incentives for Enterprises
(CREATE) was signed into law by President Rodrigo Duterte last March 26, 2021 The law became
effective on April 11, 2021, fifteen {15) days after its publication in a newspaper of general
cireulation on March 27, 2021,
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The key changes to the F‘hili]:lp'me tax law pursuant to the CREATE Act which have an impact on the
Company are the following:

»  Effective July 1, 2020, regular corporate meome tax (RCLT) rate 15 reduced from 3000094 to
25.00% for domestic and resident foreign corporations and to 20.00% for domestic corporations
with net axable income nol exceeding B5_00 million and with total assels not exceeding
B100.00 million {excluding land on which the business entity”s office, plant and eguipment are
situated) during the taxable year,

¢ Minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) rate reduced from 2.00% to 1.00% of gross income
effective July 1. 202000 Jume 30, 2023,

The provision for ingome tax congisis of:

22 M2

Current
RCIT FI5484.678 P2R 1446 502
Final 1ax 73,521 103,945
35,558,599 28250 447
Deferred (560,698) JA85.41]

34,997,001 P31.735878

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the details of net deferred tax asset follow:

2022 221
Deferred tax asset {labality) on:
Allowance for credin losses 9,913,543 P99]3,543
Past service cost 1056446 1.207.367
Others 147,806 121,716
Pension liahlity {asseth 561,704 {7d5.274)

P11,719499  PL0A497.352

The Company recognized deferred tax asset with a direct charge against OCT (exchuding CREATE
impact ) amounting to PG million in 2022 and deferred tax hability amounting to P06 million in
2021,

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company did not set up deferred tax assets on allowance for
credit and impairment losses amounting o 853 31 million in 2022 and #55.52 mallion in 2021 as
munagement assessed that these will not be realized in the future.

The reconciliahon of the statutory income tax o the provision for income tax of the Company
follows:

1022 2021
Statuiory income tEx #34,581,306 B30,937 397
Tax effects of;
Mondeductible expenszes 1,675,425 508,339
Montaxable income (6B, T06) (292,101}
Change in unrecognized deferred tax asset (550,195) (128.981)
Tax paid income (158,929 (26,378)
CREATE adjustmeni - current 1ax = (2,207,253}
CREATE adijustment - deferred tax - 2854454
Provesion for moome tax B14.997 901 B1] 735878
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Impact af CREATE Law

Applving the provisions of the CREATE Law, the Company is subjecied to lower regular corporate
income lax rate of 25% effective July 1, 2020. The following are the impact of CREATE in the 2022
finamcial statements of the Company:

* Based on the provisions of Revenue Regulations (RR ) No. 5-2021 dated Apnil 8, 2021 issued by
ihe BIR, the fransitory BCIT and MCIT ranes apphicable 1o the Company for the taxable vear
2020005 27, 5% and | 530%, respectively, This resulied in reduction in the current income fax due
for the taxable vear 2020 amounting to #2.21 million. The redoced amounts were reflected in the
2020 Annuval Income Tax Returns Gled in 2021, For financial reporiing purposes, such
reductions in the 2020 current mcome taxes were recogznized in the 2021 fnancial statements as
reduction {0 2021 income 1ax expense.

= The deferred (ax aszets as of December 31, 2021 were also remeasured using the lower RCIT rate
of 2500850, The net decrease in the deferred 1ax balances amcamting to BLOSS mallion redwced
the benefit from deferred tax assets credited to profit or loss by #2.88 mallion and other
comprehensive income by PO 3% million

There were no tax-related contingent liabilites and contingent assets ansing from the changes i the
lax rates due 10 CREATE Acl

17.

Eetained Earnings and Capital Management

O Movember U, 2021, the BOD approved the appropoation of retained earnings amounting 1o
BA0L00 million for system replacement of the Company,

On February 8, 2022, the BOD declared and approved cash dividends of P30C00 mallion for
stockholders on record as of February 8, 2022, payable on March 1, 2022.

On February 21, 2023, the BOD declared and approved cash dividends of 850,00 million for
stockholders on record as of February 21, H123, payable on March 1, 2023

Capital Monagement

The primary objectives of the Company”™s capital management &re to ensure that the Companmy
complies with extemally imposed capital requirements and that the Company maintaing strong credit
ratmes and healihy capital ratios in order to support its business and o maxirmze sharcholders” value,

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to 1t in the hght of changes in
economie conditions and the nsk charsctenstics of ils activities. In order 1o maintain or adjust the
capital sorucmere, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend payment to sharcholders, retum
capital to sharcholders or issue capital securities. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
and processes from the previous years.

In May 2006, the Insurance Commission {IC) issued Insurance Memorandum Crreular (IMC) 1-2006
integrating the compliance standards for the capitalization requirements for insurance brokers and
reinsurance brokers. Under this IMC, adeguate capitalization for existing brokers and new entrants is
essential 1o attaining sustainable levels of profitability and for the long-term growth of the country's
insurance industry.

RN AT R
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IMCT-2006 promulgated that existing insurance or reinsurance brokers must have the follewing net
worth for the following years:

Year

December 31, 2006 B2 000,000
December 31, 2007 4,006,000
December 31, 2008 £, 000D
Diecemnber 31, 2009 5,000,000
December 31, 2000 10,000,000

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company’s nel warth i3 in compliance with the capital
requirements of 1C.

Centenntal Sock Orund
In hight of the Parent Company's |00th anniversary, its Board of Directors approved on
August 5, 2020 o Centennial Stock Grant Plan to 1ssue common shares to ehigible grantess,

The Centenmial Stock Grant Plan was approved and ratified by the stockholders on October |, 2020,
subyject 1o the approval of the relevant regulatory agencies. New shares will be issued friom the Parent
Company s aulhonzed bul unsssued shares in Gavor of the China Bank Group's regular emplovees and
certain other officers and contractual emplovees as of August 16, 2020, numbering around 8,400,

O August 9, 2021, the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) approved the Pacer Company's application
to hist 5,451,600 common shares, with a par value of P10.00 per share, to cover the Group's
Centennial Stock Grant Plan. The Parent Company issuwed @ total of 5,39 maillion shares on
September 1, 2021, This resulted in an increase in the Parent Company’s "Capital stock” and "Capital
paid m excess of par value” totaling #132.02 million as of the grant date.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the owstanding values of the stock grants awarded by the
Ultimate Parent Company o the Company's emplovees amounted fo #0462 million recognized under
‘Other equity — stock grants” in the Company’s balance sheet.

18,

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company s activities are principally related w the use of Angncial instruments, which consisis of
cash and cash equivalents, receivables, accrued interest receivables, claims advances, advances 1o
officers and employees, financial assets at FYTPL, other noncurrent assets, accounts pavable, accrued
expenses and other liabilities (exchuding statutory payables). Risks are inherent in these activities but
are managed by the Company threugh a continaous process of identification, messurenent,
monitoring and mitigation of these risks partly through the effective use of risk and authority limits,
process controls and momtonng, and mdependent controls.

The main objectives of the Company’s financial risk management are to identify and monitor possible
risks on an ongoing basis, to minimize and mitigate such nsks, and to provide a degree of certainty
about costs. Exposure o credit, liquidity, foreign currency and marker risks arise in the normal
course of the Company’s business acrivities,

JNEHTARATRR AT
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Clredit Fizk

The Company's exposure to credit risk is minimal as the cash and cash equivilents are deposits with
the Parent Company and CBSI1. The financial assets at FVTPL pertain to investments in LITFs placed
in the Parent Company s Trust Group.

Maximuny expostire o credif pisk

The camrying vaiues of the Company’s financial instrumenis as reflected in the balance sheets and
related notes already represent the financial instruments’ maximum exposure o credit risk, before and
after taking into account collateral held or other credit enhancements.

The table below shows the credit quality by class of the Company’s financial assets as of
Diecember 31, 2022 wnd 2021 (gross of allowance for credit losses):

[ Ir e
Sampe 1 Sewpe 2 Staged Tutal
C el anil sl equivalenis® A1 pig Ay P #- PFLER NN S0E
Rezenabies 1.197.02% - - 1LIv7 023
Finamecial asseis 2t FYTIL 153,208,214 - - 153,500,214
Clshar nonoarrent assels
Claims advances - - 5304 A4 5,504,434
Chmrn IIHIIJ'.'] - - LE?2A7L
Tuotal AR 110 L A0 499 PEUS 575 500
A0
Suge | skge 2 Slige 3 Towl
Lol Al chigh fguivalinie® P14, 018, TEK F- P- P11a.605,754
Keceiy bz h. RS, 226 - - 0,205,220
Fmancal assels at FYTPL 151,01 380 - - 151,200,335
hifer noncurres azeeis
Clams advmces - - A0 FES b 40,785
Unhiers 1.572.571 - - 1.472.371
‘Tatal H?S.Q%Tld " P ik FES !"HHI'I..HJ!SIPI

* Excdudigk pendi il i

Stage 1 (Meither past due nor specifically impaired) - those that are considered current and up to
30 days past due, and based on change m rubing, delinquencies and payment history, do not
demonsirate significant increase in credin risk.

Stage 7 (Past due but not specifically impaired) — for financizl assets measured at FY'TPL that, based
on change in rating, delinguencies and payment history, demonstrate significant increase in credit
risk, and'or are considered maore than 30 days past due bt do not demonsirate objective evidence of
impainment as of balance sheet date,

Staee 3 (Specifically impaired) - those that are considered in default or demonstraie objective
evidence of impairment as of balance sheet date.

[pmrment assessment

Fimancial assets of gmortized cost

The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents is considered negligible since the counterparty is the
Parent Company. Cash in bank and short-term placements are insured by the Philippine Deposit
Insurance Corporation up to a maximum coverage of #0.50 million for every depositor per banking
institumon,

The credit nsk for other assets, which consist of rental deposits and other receivables, are also
considered neglipible as the Company has ongoing agreements with the counterparties and the latter
are considered to be with sound financial condition.
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Ligectadity visk
Liguidity risk is the risk of loss o camings or capital due to the inability to meet funding
requirements within a reasonable period of time at a reasonable price,

The Company monitors its cash flow position and overall liquidity position n assessing 1ts ¢xposure
Lo lguidity risk, The Company maintaing a level of cash deemed sufTicient to finance operations and
to mitigate the effects of fluctuation in cash flows.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s lnancial assets used for hguedity
purposes and financial liabilities based on ¢ontractual undiscounted payments as of
December 31, 2022 and 2021:
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The Company’s obligation to insuranee companies to remit collections from policvholders begins
after 0 davs from inception date of the policy, thus it is on demand when the sccount is already more
than ) days. However, the Company is nof liable 1o remit when there is no collection.

Foreign currency Fsk

The Company s foreign currency exposure arises from US dollar-denominated cash in bank.
Approximately 3.53% and 2.50% of the total cash m bank 15 denominated in US dollar as of
December 11, 2022 and 2021, respectively.
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Drollar-denominated financial assets are as follows:

2022 021
US dollar value 210,905 154,173
Philippine peso value P11,764,004 P7.862 654

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change i the US dollor
exchange rates of B55.755 per $1.00 and #50.959%9 per $1.00, with all other variables held constant, of
the Company s income before tax (due (o changes in the fair value of monetary assets) as of
December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. There 15 no other impact on the Company s equity other
than those already affecting the statement of comprehensive income.

Inereasse’decrease Effect on profit before fax

in U'S dollar rate 222 221
+2, 005 #2358 2H0 F157.253
=2 000 (235,280) {157,253)

The inerease in exchange rate above represents depreciation of the Philippine Peso while the decrease
represents stromger Phalippine Peso value.

. Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirecily, 10 contral the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. Corporate entities are also considered to be related if they are subject 10 common control
ot common significant influence. Transactions between related parties are based on terms similar of
thoze offered to non-related parties,

In the ordinary course of business, the Company has normal banking and other transactions with its
related parties. The effects of these iransactions are reflected in the appropriate accounts in the
financial siatcments.

[he significant amount volume, outstanding balances, and nature, terms and conditions with respect
to petated pary transactions included in the financial statements follow:

Transactions with the Bctirement Plan

The retirement fund of the Company's employees amounting 1o #1192 million and #16.42 million as
of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, is being managed by the Parent Company’s Trust
Giroup.

Thve Company’s retirement plan asset includes investment in UITFs launched by the Trust Depantment
of the Parent Company.

Wl & Personnel
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning.
directing and controlling the activities of the Company, dircctly or mmdirectly.

The remuneration of the Company’s key management personnel (included under *Compensalion and

fringe benefits’ in the statements of comprelensive income) amounted to B5.33 mithon and
£4.72 million for 2022 and 2021, respectively.
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Approval of the Release of Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements of the Company were authorized for issue by the BOD on

April 14, 2023

. Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations 15-2010

In compliance with the requiremenis set forth by RR No, 15-2010 hereunder areé the details of Value-
Added Tax (VAT) and ather taxes paid or accrued by the Company in 2022,

LT



Input WAT
Aamount
Balance a1 beginning of vear B496 435
Current year's parchases;
Cioods other than for rezale or manufacture 522,160
Services lodged under other accounts 1, 705566
Claims for ax refund and other adjusiments (2,363 087}
Balance at end of vear #359.074
Ohutput WAT

The Company is a VA T=-registered company with VAT output tax declaration of P36 58 million for
the vear based on fhe amount of commission income from premiums remitted to INSUrance companies
in 2022 amounting 304,85 million. Commission imcome reported in the Company”s financial
statements reflect amounts collected or eamed from completed brokerge services.

As of December 31, 2022, the Company’s outpet VAT pavable amounted to 86,16 million. The
Company's sales of services are based on actual collections received, hence, may not be the same as
amounts recognized in tha statement of income,

Withholding Taxes
Details of total remittances of withirolding taxes in 2022 and amoumnts outstanding as of
December 31, 2022 are as follows:

Tomal Femitiance Balance
Withholding taxes on compensation and benefits B5.Bo0, 187 Bi44 397
Expanded withholding axes 3093548 |.i64.488
#0959 735 Rl 508 885

In 2022, taxes and licenses of the Company consist of
Buziness licenses #2122.711
{Mhers 212,043
P2.334 754

Tax Assessmenis
As of December 31, 2022, the Company has no tax assessments received from the BIR.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'Ss REFORT

The Steckholders and the Board of Directors
Chinabank Insurance Brokers, Inc,

&F, WGP Center, 6772 Avala Avenue
Barunzay San Lorenso, Makatt City

We have audited the financial statements of Chinabank Insurance Brokers, Ine. (the Company ) as at and
for the year ended December 31, 2022, on which we have rendered the attached report dated
Aprl 14, 2023,

In compliance with Revised Securities Regulation Code Fule 68, we are stating that the above Company
has ome (1} stockholder owning one hundrad { 1007 or more shares.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Redgibnald G, Radam
Partner
CPA Cerificate Mo [ 18864
Tax ldentification No, 249-000-259
BOAPRC Reg. No. 0001, August 25, 2021, valid until April 15, 2024
SEC Partner Accreditation Mo, 118366-SEC (Group A)
Valid 1o cover audit of 2021 to 2023 financial statements of SEC covered institutions
SEC Firm Accreditation No. 0001-SEC {Group A)
Yalid to cover andit of 2021 to 2025 financial staiements of SEC covered institutions
BIR Accrediiation Mo, O8-001998-141-202 1, April 27, 2021, valid unti] April 26, 20024
PTR No, 9564082, January 3, 2023, Makati City

April 14, 2023



CHINADANK
INSURANCE BROKERS, INC.

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of Chimabank Insurance Brokers, Inc. (the Company) is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements including the schedules attached
therein, for the year ended December 31, 2022 in accordance with the prescribed financial
reporting framework indicated therein, and for such internal control 3s management determines is
nécessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatemnent, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as 3 going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the
Company of to cease oparations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so,

The Board of Directors (BOD) is responsible for overseeing the Company’s finandal reporting
PrOCESS,

The BOD reviews and approves the financial statements induding the schedules attached therein,
and submits the same to the stockholdders.

syCip Gorres Velayo & Co., the independent auditor appointed by the stockholders, has audited the
financial statements of the company in sccordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in its
report to the BOD and stockholders, has expressed its opinion on the fairness of presentation upar
completion of such audit.

-/

Patrick D. Cheng

Chalrman of the fil
Signature M .
Frankie . Pani

thva Carmeta 0. Canceran
Tregsurer

Signed this _ day of April 2023.
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| RELENETTE C. TAN, EEIFFII'.IFTII.EI Sal:ratar}-nf CHINARBANE INSURANCE AROKERS INC. declare
uncder penalty of perjury that all matters sct forth in this GES bave been made in good Taith, duly
varified by me and 1o the best of my khowledge and belief are trug and correct.

I heraby attest that all the information in this GIS are being submitted in compliance with the rules
nnd regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission [SEC) the colbectbon, processing
storage and sharing of said infermation being necessary to carry oul the functions of public
aAuthority for the perlormance of the constitutimnzlly and satutorily mandated Rnctions of the
SECas a regulatory agenci.
[ Turthor attest that | kave been sullorized by tee Board of Directors Trustees to Ale this GIS with
the SEC.
I understand thot the Commission may place the corporation under delinguent status for fallure 1o
pubmit the reportorial requirements three (3] imes, conseoutively or intermittently, within s
pesiod af Mive (5 years [ Section 177, 84 No, TT232 ).
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Ri PURPOSE

TO ACT AS A BROKER IN SOLICITING, PROCURING, NEGOTIATING, RECENVING,
MANAGING AND FORWARDING APPLICATIONS FOR FIRE, CASUALTY, PLATE GLASS,
AUTOMOBILES, TRUCKS AND OTHER MOTORVEHIGLES ACCIDENT, HEALTH,
BURGLARY, RENT, MARIMNE, CREDIT, ISABILITY, LIFE INSURAMCE, AND ALL OTHER
KIMDS OF INSURANCE, INCLUDING REINSURAKNCE CONTRACTS OR IN ANY OTHER
MANNER AIDING IN TAKING OUT INSURANCE, COLLECTING PAYMENTS OF PREMILUMS
DUE DM SUCH POLICIES, AMD DOING SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS MAY BE DELEGAED
TO BROKER OR SUCH COMPAMNIES IN THE CONDUCT OF A GENERAL INSURANCE
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GENERAL INFORMATION SHEET
STOCK CORPORATION

FLEASE PRINT LEGIELY ===

CORPORATE MAME:

CHINABANK INSURANCE BROKERS INC.

DIRECTORS f OFFICERS

Qupzan City

! STOCK EXEC | TAX INENTIFRCATICNN
NAME,/CURRENT RESIDENTIAL ADDRESS | NATIOMALITY | INC'R | BOARD | CENDER| o | OFFICER | - NIMBER
1. PATRICK [, CHENG .
27 mahimi 55, Hr_'l'E- Juddition Hills, F-Iﬁplr'll'.'l M [# W A Chalrman 107-1 Fik-aH4
TN BT T AT)
1 FRANKIE [ PANIS ;
2602 A Lamayan Street, Sta. Ana, Fillplna N M M 1 President 163-060-258
i PHILIP 5.5, TSAl ! ;
£57 Oscar Arollano St San |ian Gy, Fillphno N I M L NEA 1A5-401-952
£, MARGARITA L. SAN JUAN
15 First Strest, Ipnatius Village. Filipine N ! F ¥ NfA AES-A0L-0eh
iy
5 MARIA PRIMITIVA CARMERLA [
CANCERAN N F ] Treasurer 100-342-912
E598 H Unrubia Sareet Brgy. I"1|.'|F-|I.'|l:l
ity
& BELENETTEC. TAN Cor
; porale
130 8. Sth Strest, New Manil, Filipino N F M Seeretary LIz IAED

7

s METTHEN G PO LS -—

INETRLUCTICN,

PO SEX-COL U, PUT TF FOR FEMALE, W° FORMALE
FiE BOARED COLLNN, FUT™C FOR CHAIRMAN, "hT FOR 8BEWACR, 5° FOR INDEPERNCENT DRECTOR.
FOR 8GR COLUMH, PUT =7 IF AR IRCORPORATOR, T F ROT
FOE STOCKHOLOER CO8LIMBL PLT =7 IF 4 STOCHHCLDER, W I WOT.
FOME CFFICER 0L LIS, INDICATE PARTICULAR POSITON IF A% OFFICER, FROM NP LIP INCLUHNG THE POSITION OF THE TREASURER,

GECRETARY, DOWMPLLAMNCE OFFCER AMDAOH ASS0CIATED PERSOR,
FOiE EXECUTIVE COMMITTER. INDICATE "0 IF MEMBER OF THE COMPENSATICN COMMTTEE; "° FOR AUDIT COMUITTED, T FOR NOMPATHN

AND ELECTHON COUMMTTEF  ADDIMIONALLY WRITE "C° AFTER SLASH IF CHAIRMAN NI "W IF MEMBER.

G5 FTOCK [ d0gl

Pape 4




GENERAL INFORMATION SHEET

STOCK CORPORATION

FLEASE PRINT LEGTALY s=sssammms s o i w e e o s g i =

CORPORATE KAME:

CHINABANK INSTILANCE BROKERS INC.

TOTAL AMOUNT 0OF PAID-UF CAPITAL

TITAL NUMBER OF STOCKIHLDERS: 5 NE. OF STOCKHOLDERS WITH 100 DR MORE SHAR  DNE [1]
TOTAL ASSETS HBASED 0% LATEST AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: PSGE, 736,845 [Vear 1021 AFE)
STOCKHOLDER'S INFORMATION
SHARES SUBSCRIBED
NAME, NATIONALITY AND CURRENT o O AMOUNT PAID | TAX IDENTIFICATION
RESIDENTIAL ADDRESS p— HUMBEE AMOUNT OWHER (FhE) NUMBER
{FhP} S
1 CHINABANE CORPORATIN i 1 ARG 144 1 2% 5L b
Filgunn
HTAS asis de Ileasas, Ml Oy | ST RS0K00 D00-444:110
TUTAL 141,295 142,129 500,00
7 PATITICK 10, CHENG L 1 L0
Flpinu
BIT  Mobeni St Mgy, Addibom il Ui el s
Blanibtlenvmne Dty TOTAL o000
L FRANKN G PANITS C | | el
gD
203 A 1amayan Srem; T A, Manks p e L
TOTAL 1 TOL00
4. JO5E L 0EMERA r i )
Fllgilng
At Wonr  China Bemk  etiding i Lheranaons
K45 Pairen il lemps, Miikiali Ciey TOTAL 1 oo
A PHILIP 5.L. T3AL i i LI
Filigsnis
157 Ol Areflann S Ran juan City, Mt JARRAR HSHA
Manila TOTAL 1 100080
T MARGARITA L SAN JUAN L i T
IFilbpini
15 First Street, Ignatios Village, (aesan ity i it o e
TOTAL 1 oo
T, - AT FILLOWS ——
TOTAL
TOTAL AMOUNT OF SURSCRIBED CAPITAL 0009, 142,130,000.00

[HSTRUCTION: SPECIFY THE TOF Z0 STOCKHOLDERS AND INDICATE THE REST AS DTHERS

|erribies Allmch sepoimle slieel, i seoesaary.

Mate: Fur PRTC Aominee inclided in the fix, plesye indicels flertiver e bhenefioel owesers ownilog oveere ran 5% of eny ofoss of the compomy's voling

U5 STHRCH eI

Mage b




GENERAL INFORMATION SHEET
STOCK CORPORATHIN,

rmmman PLEASEFRINT LEHELY sev=zaszszsazzs zzzzzzzzz
CORIIRATE NAML EHINABANK | NSUANCT BEOKTRS INC
TOTLL MUMBER OF §TEHHR LIRS 5 Rk, OF TTOCKIETLDENS WITE | 08 [0 sHRE SHAKES EACH:

TOTALASTLETE BARON LATERT ALDHTEE 5.

STOCHHOLDER'S INFORMATION

SHARES SURSCRIBED

SAME, NATIONALITY D CUMWENT AMRIUNT PAID o

" T IBENTIFCATIE S
AESINENTIAL ADNRERS AMOUNT i W (FRP}
. TVRE MUMEIER i P NEMBER

TOTAL

TOTAL

TOTAL

TOTAL

TUTAL

TOTAL

TOTAL

TOTAL AMOUNT GF SR ASCWIHED CAPITAL {r.R0H .00

TOTALAMOUNT OF FAH-UP CAFTAL

| WETRUCTHIN: BFEEIFY THETOR 1D STOCKHELOERS AMD Dl CATE THE PEST &R O THERS

Mnle: Fur BT Nasibiee mretade 10 (e E, pleser sdeate hirtser thr beneficocl niers nmunpmmmj':-ﬂ'ﬁwhslﬂuh mmpnd’ 8 g sermrriles. ARaTR
oyt phusd. o pceenir




GENERAL INFORMATION SHEET

L R AL R TR
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TODAL AMGLUNT OF PUE-IF CAPTTAL.
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T el O PR D LR LTy
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gl wiiF
TEHTAL
i
TaTLL
TaTR
TaTAL
TTAL
TOTAL
TTNEEY [edirmy ke b i s e
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GENERAL INFORMATION SHEET

STOCK CORPORATION

FUNDS 1N ANOTHER CORPORATION

_____________________________________ PLEASE PEIST LEGIOLY T e e SRR e e e S e S e e
e —————— —

CORPORATE NAME:

1. INVESTMENT OF CONPORATE AMOHNT [(PRP) OATE OF BOARD RESOLUTIHON

1.T STOCKS

1.0 EONDS COMMERCIAL PAPIR (Fsaued
ey Privile Codpiod il i)

1.3 LOANS) CREDITS ADVANCES

14 GOVERNMENT TREASAIY HILLS

15 OTHERS
T INVESTMENT OF CORPORATE FUNDS IN ACTIVITIES UNDER TTH [MTEOF BUARD HATE th
SCCONDARY PURPOSES (PLEASE SPECIFY:] RESOLUTITN STOCKIOLDERS
R TN TR R TR - RATIFICATION
I THEASURY SHARES f
NOL GF SHARES Y ASTO THETOTAL

N1 OF SHARES 155UED

L UNRESTRICTOD/UNAPPROPIIATED RETAINED EARNINGE A% OF END OF LAST FIECAL VEAR

T

VIDES DS DECLARET OURING THE IMMEDIATELY PRECEINNG YEAR:

TYPLOF HIYIDEND

AMTHINT fPRiE)

TR FECLAREL

4. CASH

Gl R0 K

U721 FaNTS

52 ST{HK

53- PRIFERTY

TOTAL 7

ADBITICHAL SHARES 15SUED DUVRING THE FERHAL

DATE N0, [FF STIARES

AMOUNT

SECONDARY ICENSE/REGISTRATION WITH SEC ANDOTHER GOY'T AGENCY:

MAME OF AGENCY: SEC

HEp

1c

TYFEOF
LICENSE (HEGH.

BT E ISSTIEER:

[FATESTARTED
(3P ERLATECONS:

TOTAL ANNUAL COMPENSATION OF
BIRILTORS [FURING THE PRECEDING FISLAL
YEAR [his Pl

TOTAL NO.OF OFFICERS

ii

TOTAL KO OF RANK &
VILE M LOVEEY

TOTAL MANFOWENR
COMPLEMENT

S PRE AL HINAR SHEET TF NECR S




|, BELENETTE C. TAN, Corporans Secratary of CHIRABANK INSUHRANCE BROEERS INC. declwrs
under penalty of perjury that all matters set forth in this GI5 have been made in good faith, duly
verified by me and L te best of iy knowladge and belief are rue and correct

| herily attegt that gl the iniormation in this GLS gre being saimitted in compliance with the roles
anid regulations ef the Securities and Exchange Commission [SEC) the collection, processing
starmge wnd sharing of said information being necessary to tarry ouil the lenclians ol pubbie
authority for the performance of the constitutianally and statatorily mandated functions of |he
SEC a5 4 regulatoryagency

| furiber attest that | have beens duthorieed v the Boord of Directors Trustees o fle this G5 wilh
the SELC

| winilerstand (hat the Commission may place the corporation under definquent status for failure to
submt the repostorial reguiremoents trroe | 3) fimes, congacutively or intermittentdy, within

et iod of five |5) vears { Sectlon 177, R4 Mo 1232 ),

APR 117
D this dav of ﬁ 20 inCMTY OF wiawhy,
M. TAMN
(Sigrataare over prinled name )
CITY OF MANAT! APR 17
SUBSCRIBED AND SWIIEN T belors me in an by affinng whe
persanally appeared before me anid =xhibited tome his/her cuompetenl evijienes ¥
comnisting of 55% Ko, 3315808249 |s=neoil 8l i
ALVIN INTANILLA
Notary-Frblic for Makati City
Appt. Mo, M-21F - #tif Desemiper 31, 2023
T o bl ding.

B755 Paseo & *T RUELGKaH City
goc. No.__ 0 PTR Mo. 957017 2: £1-05-2073; Makatl City
PAGE NO. 18P Ng, 293227, °1-10." " : Cavite
BOOK RO, MCLE Compliance N2, =00 33.28.207°
SERIESOF 20 23 Roll of Attarney's No. 40925

wli STEERF U1



: BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP DECLARATION
FOR'THE YEAR: 2023

ALP9E-13785
CHIMABANE INSLRANCE BROKERS, INC.

SEC REGESTHATION NUMBER:
CEOMRHLATE NAME:

Instructinns

1, Identify the Bepefcal Ownerfs of the corporation 3 describod in e Categories of Benelicial Dwoership
iterm A b | belowy, List dwsan as many 35 you can Idestily, Yo may vscan additional gheat 0 neoessary,

2L Fillin the reguiced imformaos an the beneficial owner in the lelds provided foe,

3 o phe "Cerggory ol Beneficial Gwmership” column, indicute the letter(s] oxresponding thereto. [n the cvint
that the person identified = beielcal ovedr Sl asder sevors] cotegories. inidicse sl the leiters
currespnaling b sl categores,

g, Il the tegory s ander letter 17, indkmie the position held [ic. DirectorfTrsten, Prosident, Chiol
Execwtive Officer, Chiel Operatng OfMicer, Chivl Financiol DRcer, o),

5. Do onat byve any tem blank Wreite “N/A" If the information required 15 not applceble pr“NONE" if non-

L skl
“Beenalicial Swmer” rolers to @any natoral personds ) who ultimests |y ownd<) or control{s) er smmrcies{ ) bmate

sffertive contred over the varparation. This definition covers the nanual persnals) who actaally oem or contrml the

corperston asdistingushod fenm e lepel cwmera Such benefical vemership oy be deternmned oo the basisof the

Description

A Hamral persen(s] vewming, difecty of indirecty or thraugh o chain of mweorship, ot least tweoty-five
percenk [ 2559 of the voting rights, voting sheres ar copital of the reporting corparation.

Huturd persans) whe exercise conbod over the reporting torpesation, along or tagether with athers

] thraugh any controct, asderssanding. reladionsip, mtermediany or dersd entity,

[ Mutiral porden(#] beviag the ohility to elect o magnity of the baard of directars fessoee, or any <imilor
hurdy, of the corporation,

n Hamural porsanis] kaving the ahility to exert a dominast infleemsos ever the management of Bolickess of tho
rorporntion.

E Namral persands) whose directinms, msbnsctians, o wishoes b copducting the affairs of the corpamgion
ure curticd vat by majority of the members of the hosrd of directars of such corpuration whoe an:
gooustominl ar under an chigmton toact in accordance with such porson's directions, instructions ar

F Maturs! porsangs) acting as stewarnds of the properties of corpecations, wher such prapertes are usiler
thie ciire or administation of =ad retaral peesan]s].

M Natural porsoif <) who actially swn o control the regiorting carperation through naminee sharchalders
i nomimit darcctores actimy for or on behall of sach eatues! persop.

H Natural perans(s) ultmately manimg or coatrolling o exerclsing it sFecrv ool the
carpormtion through cther megns net flling ander any of dee fongoing mitegores,

i Mataral porsnm s} exercising montrol through peseions held withbi o coepamean (e, resposibie for
strabegie destsians that fundamensally affiect the business practices of geeers direcim of i
corpematian swch as the mumbers af the hoard of diseccors o trstees o similar body wathin tha
cirporationn or exercising expcumi congrof ever the daily or regular alfaics of te corperstion throagh o
genanr management position ). This aitegery (¢ oy appllcalibe in escoptismal cases when: nn natural
persun s identifiahle wio ubinavely iems on eperts control over the corporation, the reparting
vorporation having exhaavmed sl ressinahies means of sdentification and provided theeo sr moe eroonsds

Coregnry

TVPE OF
COMPLETE MAME OF | BENEFICIAL
CATEGORY
(Surnanse, Given SPECIFIC R TAX UWHERSHIF | DWKER 3
Name, Middle Nome, | BESIDENTIAL | samionsermy [ oo 0 | wismicanion | % OF ENERCIAL
Hame Exiension {ie., ADDRESS L] VOTING | Direet (B} | qunmmsine
Ir. Sr, 00y BEGHTS® | orindirect
[y
il VB P Paikvisy
L T TR e ] I
Chver crerier Sedain § Priegmiar] -
ROWED D WA, S, Salcwi Wilapn ':__‘"'-‘IFF""B
§ Chibeg M Canaora kol heaal Ty F!h: HAaHa 105-07E-E28 AT G (el |

Wit Thes jaaae i sl fir ixpfionillg s e ST TWens
! Fok Senck Corporations,
! Fnr Non-Saoch Curporations
" For Stoch Corporatims

fil% FOHEIGH fv.2020) Varr I°



PRIMARY PURPOSE

TOACT AS A BROKER IN'SOLICITING, PROCURING, NEGOTIATING, RECEIVING,
MANAGING AND FORWARDING APELICATIONS FOR FIRE, CASUALTY, PLATE GLASE,
ALUTOMDBILES TRUCKS AND OTHER MOTOR VEHICLES ACCIDENT. HEALTH,
BURGLARY., RENT, MARINE, CREDIT, DISABILITY, LIFE INSURANCE, AND ALL OTHER
KINDS OF INSURANCE, INCLUDING REINSURANCE CONTRACTS OR IN ANY OTHER
MANMER AIDING IN TAKING OUT INSURANCE. COLLECTING PAYMENTS OF PREMIUMS
DUE DN SUCH POLICIES, AND DQING SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS MAY BE DELEGAED
TO BROKER OR SUCH COMPANIES IN THE COMDUCT OF A GENERAL [MSURANCE



